WINTER CAMP 2022 QUAWPAW AREA COUNCIL GUS BLASS SCOUT RESERVATION



Welcome to Gus Blass Scout Reservation Winter Camp!

Dear Scouts and Scouters:

Welcome to Gus Blass Scout Reservation's Winter Camp 2022! We are excited to return this premiere wintertime adventure to our line up of awesome events! Winter Camp is a Scouts BSA Resident Camp which promises advancement, fun, and unmatchable outdoor adventures. Scouts will enjoy every adventure camp in Arkansas can offer, all in the cool November weather – it doesn't get much better than that!

We have outlined several new program additions in this Camp Guide, however there is much more on the way – stay tuned!

This Camp Guide includes information to help you prepare for a successful camp experience. This is your guide for registration, class scheduling, camp policies, program information, merit badge pre-requisites, and much more.

If you have any questions, please don't hesitate to reach out to our camp administration.

We look forward to meeting all of you this winter! Our camp staff has a very well-defined mission: to provide every camper a safe, fun, and truly unforgettable experience, while fulfilling the mission of the Boy Scouts of America! We'll see you in November!

Yours in Scouting,

Cahill Richardson

Alex Clark

Winter Camp Director

Winter Camp Program Director

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CAMP RULES AND POLICIES	
Contact Information	5
Camp Dates	5
Arrival/Departure Times	5
Reservation Deposits	6
Camp Fees	6
Online Registration Instructions	6
Event Refund Policy	7
Provisional Campers	7
Leaders	
Rotating / Partial Camp Leaders	8
PREPARING FOR CAMP	
Packing List	c
Arrival Time	
Check In	
Required Documents for Check In	
Pre-Camp Swim Checks	
HEALTH AND SAFETY	
Health Lodge	10
Annual Health and Medical Record	
Trips to the Hospital or Doctor	
Accident and Sickness Insurance	
Medications	
Wicalculoiis	
GENERAL CAMP INFORMATION	
Camp T-Shirts	10
Directions to Camp	
Food Sorvice	

Lost and Found	14
Mobility Needs	14
Parents / Visitors at Camp	14
Special Needs	15
Spending Money	15
Trading Post	15
Wifi and Cell Service	15
MERIT BADGES AND CLASSES	
Preparation for Merit Badges and Other Classes	15
TREK System	16
Theme Days	16
TREK Matrix	18
TROOP ACTIVITIES AND INFORMATION	
Daily Schedule	20
FOR LEADERS	
Leader Meetings	
Leader Training & Activities	
Scoutmaster Lounge	21
Scoutmaster Merit Badge	21

FORMS

Daily Campsite Inspection Form Prescription Medication Dosing Form Camp Map

CONTACT INFORMATION

QUAWPAW AREA COUNCIL - CAMP INFORMATION & ASSISTANCE

For help registering for Winter Camp, please call Kim Brainard at Phone:501-664-4780. For questions regarding program operations or administrative logistics, please contact the Camp Leadership below.

QUAWPAW AREA COUNCIL – WINTER CAMP DIRECTOR

Cahill Richardson

Email: cahill_richardson@yahoo.com

QUAWPAW AREA COUNCIL – WINTER CAMP PROGRAM DIRECTOR

Alex Clark

Email: aclark7@citadel.edu

QUAWPAW AREA COUNCIL – DIRECTOR OF PROGRAM

Mike McLoughlin

Email: mike.mcloughlin@scouting.org

WINTER CAMP INFORMATION

Phone: 501-335-7208 (Only use when camp is in session)

Mailing Address: Your scouts may receive mail during camp addressed as follows:

408 Scout Drive, Damascus, Arkansas, 72039

CAMP DATES

GBSR Winter Camp will offer one session in 2022 over the Thanksgiving break.

Session 1 of 1: November 19th – 23rd, 2022

ARRIVAL / DEPARTURE TIMES

Provisional Camper check-in will begin at 11:00AM on Saturday, November 19th.

Unit check-in will begin at 12:00PM on Saturday, November 19th.

Check-out will begin 12:00PM on Wednesday, November 23rd.

RESERVATION DEPOSITS

No deposit is required. Payment must be made in full prior to the beginning of Camp. Please note that if a unit is bringing less participants than the capacity of the campsite that they may be assigned to share a campsite. Provisional campers do not need to request a campsite.

CAMP FEES

WINTER CAMP SESSION 1 OF 1:	Regular: By end of day Nov. 1	Late: After November 15th
Youth Camping w/ Unit	\$230.00	\$260.00
Provisional Youth	\$230.00	\$260.00
Adult	\$115.00	\$115.00

CAMP FEE NOTES:

- Camp fee includes a Winter Camp patch.
 - o The LAST DAY to register and guarantee a patch is November 1st.
- To sign up for classes, 100% of camp fees must be paid.
- A few select classes and merit badges will have additional fees to cover the cost of supplies. These can be noted on the merit badge list.

ONLINE REGISTRATION INSTRUCTIONS

All winter camp registrations and payments will be made using our online registration system.

Please be sure when registering that:

- 1. The rank is correct.
- 2. That you have selected classes for all youth (and adults if applicable)
- 3. That you are PAID IN FULL before coming to camp.

EVENT REFUND POLICY

- Requests for refunds for participant cancellations will be considered only for the following reasons:
 - Serious illness or injury preventing attendance
 - Death in family preventing attendance.
 - All cancellations not involving one of the above reasons will be subject to a \$50 cancellation fee.
- Refund request must be received NO LATER THAN FIVE BUSINESS DAYS after the
 event is completed. Supporting receipts must accompany the request.
 Requests received after this time will not be processed.
- Requests must be made in writing to the Council Service Center via mail, fax, or email.
 All emails must be sent to mike.mcloughlin@scouting.org
- Activities or events cancelled by the Council will be refunded at 100%.
- No refunds will be approved for no shows or for bad weather that does not warrant event cancellation.
- Refunds will be made by check payable to the person or entity who made the original payment. Please allow 30 days for processing.
- Transferring fees from one person to another within the same unit for the same program is permissible. Fees are not transferable from one Black Pug account to another.
- The Quapaw Area Council is not responsible for any payment arrangements made between units and their members

PROVISIONAL CAMPERS

The provisional camper program allows scouts to attend camp without their unit.

There are two types of provisional campers:

PROVISIONAL CAMPERS: Provisional campers become part of the GBSR provisional troop (male troop and female troop) for the duration of camp which is supervised by Staff Scoutmasters (male and female) and at least one additional adult leader. Provisional Troops are limited to 40 scouts, who are formed into patrols of 8. Availability is on a first come, first serve basis.

NOTE: Scouts attending as provisional campers should be of the maturity level that both parent(s) and Scoutmaster are confident that they can camp without their unit.

LEADERS

BSA National requires all leaders attending camp for more than 72 hours be registered leaders in the BSA with YPT training completed. Each unit must provide at least two adult leaders with current YPT training. To verify YPT certificates upon check in, please bring either a copy of the membership cards for your leaders OR a copy of your official recharter roster with the names of the leaders highlighted.

ROTATING / PARTIAL CAMP LEADERS

Consistent leadership throughout camp has proven to work best for the units and camp. When it is necessary, leaders may rotate in/out and share a single leader fee. We ask that rotating leadership sign in and out of the camp office when a leadership change occurs and that the camp wristband be passed to the incoming leader. Also, please be aware that extra camp patches and leader recognitions will not be available for multiple leaders sharing the same leader slot.

ARRIVAL TIMES

Units should plan to arrive at camp no earlier than 12:00 p.m. and no later than 1:00 p.m. on November 19th.

Provisional Scouts have a special check-in time. Please arrive by 11:00 a.m. (lunch is not provided)

The first scheduled activity at Winter Camp will be at 1:00 p.m. on day one, followed by the first Merit Badge classes. Your group should arrive with plenty of time to set up camp and prepare for the day.

CHECK-IN

Upon check in you will meet with your Troop Guide who will guide you through the check in process. Be sure to have all of the required documentation for check-in. Each unit will be guided through check-in in such an order as to prevent any one area becoming too congested.

The check-in procedure will include the following:

- Medical Screening; Screening Forms and Health Forms collected.
- Paperwork Check; any outstanding payments settled.
- Camp Orientation and Tour

The check-in process may be changed in the event of inclement weather.

PACKING LIST

PERSONAL (RECOMMENDED)

- ✓ A personal tent (required)
- ✓ Bed roll or light sleeping bag
- ✓ A complete class A Uniform with hangar
- ✓ Comfortable closed toe shoes
- ✓ Water Shoes NOTE shoes are required for all boating merit badges. You should bring water shoes or a second pair of old shoes.
- ✓ Scout Shorts
- ✓ Scout T-shirts
- ✓ Underwear and scout socks
- ✓ Rain coat or poncho
- ✓ Sleeping bag or sheet and blanket
- ✓ Mosquito netting
- ✓ Pillow
- ✓ Toothbrush & Toothpaste
- ✓ Medications *
- ✓ Brush or comb (if necessary)
- ✓ Soap, Shampoo & other toiletries
- ✓ Lip Balm (if necessary)
- ✓ Small First Aid kit make at home
- ✓ Flashlight with extra batteries
- ✓ Swim trunks
- ✓ Towels (2)
- ✓ Insect repellent (non aerosol ONLY)
- ✓ Suntan Lotion
- ✓ Itchy Stuff (like Gold Bond Powder)
- ✓ Hat plain, wide brim is good
- ✓ Glasses / Sunglasses as needed
- ✓ Small backpack to use as a day pack
- ✓ Water bottle MANDATORY
- Pencil, paper, folder, merit badge books, and MB prerequisite form
- ✓ Camp Chair for campfires and merit badge classes.
- ✓ Any supplies needed for merit badges
- √ Face Mask and personal Hand Sanitizer

PERSONAL (OPTIONAL)

- ✓ Pocket knife and Totin' Chip
- ✓ Compass
- ✓ Firem'n Chit
- ✓ Tent Fan (battery type)

TROOP (RECOMMENDED)

- ✓ Troop first-aid kit
- ✓ U.S. flag
- ✓ Troop flag
- ✓ Patrol flags
- ✓ Tools/axe/saw/duct tape/clothesline/rope/clothespins
- ✓ Water Cooler (s)
- ✓ Office Supplies paper, sharpie, tacks, stapler
- √ Games/cards/campsite activities
- ✓ Battery powered clock
- ✓ Lighter

PROVIDED IN THE CAMPSITE

- ✓ Pavilion with lights and overhead fans
- ✓ Picnic tables/bulletin board
- ✓ Flag Pole
- ✓ Fire Ring
- ✓ Garbage can and Recycling Bins
- ✓ Running Water (hot and cold)
- ✓ Latrine with showers/toilet paper supply
- ✓ Cleaning supplies/garbage bags

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR CHECK-IN

- 1. A unit roster of winter camp participants (youth and adult). We recommend that you print your RECHARTER Roster and highlight those that are in attendance. In this way we can be sure that all attending are registered and that all adults in attendance are registered leaders in the unit.
- 2. Any outstanding payments.
- 3. For each youth and adult leader:
 - ✓ The BSA Annual Health and Medical Record, Parts A, B & C, signed by a guardian and dated within 12 months. Note: Part C requires a physical.
 - ✓ **Pre-Camp Medical Screening Form** completely filled out and signed by the parent/guardian, participant, and driver (if is someone other than the participant or parent/guardian.
 - ✓ **Medication Dosing Form** for each attendee bringing prescription medication
 - ✓ Any program-specific permission forms (IE Permission to leave Camp)
 - ✓ **For out-of-council units/individuals** copy of your local council's accident or insurance information. This can usually be found on your council's website.
- 4. Unit Health Officer Waiver Form

PRE-CAMP SWIM CHECKS

No swim tests will be conducted at Winter Camp. Only Scouts in the Sea to Sea Trek will be required to submit proof of swim test prior to camp. Units may conduct swim tests prior to camp (following BSA guidelines listed on the form). Please ensure that the date the swim test was conducted is within 12 months of the starting date of your unit's week at camp. Please bring a copy of the form with the unit to camp. As per BSA NCAP standards, the aquatics director reserves the right to retest any scout for any reason, if the director is concerned for the safety of any participants.

HEALTH LODGE

The camp health lodge is staffed 24 hours a day by qualified health officers who will handle all minor injuries, scrapes and bruises, etc... Any person requiring care outside of the scope of the health lodge will be referred to urgent care or the emergency room of the local hospital. For insurance purposes and for the health and safety of all participants, all accidents and illnesses, must be reported to the Health Lodge and recorded.

ANNUAL HEALTH AND MEDICAL RECORD (HEALTH FORMS)

This is the area that causes the most issues at check-in so please adhere to the policies listed below. WE CANNOT MAKE EXCEPTIONS to the health form requirements as it is a violation of National Camp Standards.

Annual Health and Medical Records completed and dated within the last 12 months are required for all campers and leaders who are on property during camp. Here are some very important points regarding the Health and Medical Records:

- Parts A, B, and C will be collected at check-in.
- Please understand that it is the responsibility of EACH PARENT to ensure that their scout
 has the correct medical forms. It is not camp's responsibility to track down the forms
 from scoutmasters, the OA etc. There is NO FILE OF HEALTH FORMS at camp or the
 council office from previous activities. A new form must be brought to camp either with
 the unit or the scout.
- Rotating leaders on property also require form A and B. Part C is required for rotating leaders on property for more than 72 consecutive hours.
- The Annual Health and Medical Record is located under the resources section of the winter camp page. This is THE ONLY FORM allowed. Sports and school physicals will not be accepted.
- This form is a fillable PDF (Parts A and B). A typed form is preferred over a handwritten form for legibility purposes.
- All information should be filled out COMPLETELY including immunization and emergency contact information.
- Please only send COPIES (clean and easy to read) of your health form to camp.
- Do not mail, email or bring health forms to the council office prior to camp. All health forms should be printed brought to camp.
- Units can assist us by pre-checking all health forms to ensure they are accurate and complete and neatly organized in a binder alphabetically. It is easiest for us if the forms are NOT in page protectors.
- Health Forms that note prescription medications or have noted health issues should be separated out, as they will be checked in at a separate station.
- PLEASE READ THIS!!!! If you do not have the complete and correct health forms you
 will not be permitted to check into camp.

TRIPS TO THE HOSPITAL OR DOCTOR

It is the responsibility of the unit leadership to provide transportation for the unit member(s) requiring attention from a doctor or a hospital, unless the Health Officer determines that emergency transport is necessary. One adult leader from the unit, and one additional adult leader, will accompany the unit member(s) requiring services and is asked to carry insurance forms in for completion. He/she must obtain the Scout's health and medical form from the Health Lodge before going to the doctor or hospital. Parents or guardians will be notified by the Camp Director immediately of any serious illness or injury. If parents will not be at home while the scout is at camp, have them advise the unit how they can be contacted. The Camp Medical officer must clear all cases requiring outside medical care. The following medical facilities are the designated camp providers:

Conway Regional Medical Center: 2302 College Ave, Conway, AR, 72034

ACCIDENT AND SICKNESS INSURANCE

Each camper and leader should have a copy of his or her personal health/accident insurance card attached to their health form. The Boy Scouts of America - Council Accident and Sickness Insurance Plan provides secondary coverage for registered Scouts. Quapaw Area Council provides insurance for all units registered in the council.

<u>Reminder:</u> out-of-council units need to provide copies of their local council's accident and sickness insurance information. This can be submitted during check-in.

MEDICATIONS

Prior to arrival at camp, units should fill out the Medication Dosing Form for each unit member taking medication. Use one form/sheet for each camper. The medication, dosage, and dosage schedule should be recorded. Each unit should be prepared to show these forms at check-in to the Camp Health Officer, and then keep them updated throughout the unit's week at camp. We will ask that you leave these completed forms at camp when you depart. We will maintain them safely in the permanent camp medical files.

Prescription medication should be in the original container with the medication name, strength, dose and frequency marked on the container. Any Over the Counter Medications brought with camper(s) should be labeled clearly and listed on the BSA Health Forms. Any medications that can be dispensed, such as Motrin, Benadryl, should be listed or included. Aspirin will not be given to campers under 18 years old. Aspirin will only be given, if risk for stroke or heart attack, per medical dispatch.

Generally, all medication will be dispensed in the unit area by a responsible adult leader. Medication should be kept in a locked box issued by the camp. Medication requiring refrigeration or injection may be kept in the Health Lodge. This medication may be dispensed by the Camp Health Officer or the unit leader. It remains the responsibility of the unit leader to assure that the scout is present at the appropriate times for medication.

Be sure to properly fill out the Health Form regarding medications and make sure to check the yes/no boxes regarding the administration of over-the-counter medicine.

Important Note: If the BSA Medical Form indicates that an individual must have an inhaler, EpiPen® or similar medical device, the health officer must confirm that the individual has the required item(s) in their possession. If the items are not in possession of the camper or leader, they must either obtain the items indicated on the form or the individual will be required to leave camp.

CAMP T-SHIRTS

All campers (youth and adults) may purchase a Winter Camp T-shirt for \$10.00, if ordered prior to November 1st. All shirts will be available for Pick Up at Check-in.

DIRECTIONS TO CAMP

From US-65 turn west onto AR-124. In 2.2 miles turn right (west) onto Spires Rd followed by a right (north) turn in 0.5 miles onto Hall Hendren Ln. The Reynolds Training Center will be on your left in 1.1 miles.

FOOD SERVICE

NO ASSIGNED SEATING: Participants may sit anywhere they like during meals. If units prefer to sit together, one adult may enter the dining hall and mark the tables for the unit. For breakfast and dinner units are dismissed from the flag ceremony on the activity field. Lunch is first come/first served.

DINING HALL SERVICE: The Dining Hall serves cafeteria-style meals utilizing two serving lines to expedite service. Diners should not leave the dining hall until the entire dining hall is dismissed.

DINING HALL CLEAN UP: Each troop is expected to thoroughly clean their area after each meal. This includes throwing out all trash, wiping down tables and benches, sweeping the floor under

and around tables.

HAND WASHING: To prevent camp illnesses, everyone should wash / sanitize their hands prior to each meal. Hand washing sinks and sanitizing stations are located at each entry door.

SPECIAL DIETARY CONCERNS: If you have special dietary needs that cannot be met within the realm of the camp menu, you will need to bring appropriate substitutions with you. We find it is easier on the scout and the kitchen staff if the dietary needs are significant, that complete, frozen meals be provided which can be microwaved. If the need requires substitutions (IE Non-dairy milk versus milk) we will have a special refrigerator in the dining hall where scouts can store their ingredients and access them at will. We ask that unit leaders take a lead role in ensuring that the proper substitutions are made for those scouts in their units with dietary needs.

LOST AND FOUND

Prior to coming to camp, Scouts should be encouraged to clearly mark all personal items with their name and troop number. Scouts are also encouraged to leave valuable, sentimental or hard to replace items at home. A lost and found box is located in the Camp Office. We ask that when things are found they are brought to the lost and found box.

MOBILITY NEEDS

Camp Commissioners will be able to provide cart transportation to Scouts with special mobility needs between merit badge sessions. Please contact the Camp Administration prior to your arrival to make these arrangements. There is a wheelchair accessible campsite with accessible showers and restrooms at camp. Campers may bring their own wheelchairs or motorized chairs.

PARENTS / VISITORS AT CAMP

Parents often remark at how much their son or daughters have grown during their week away from home. Camp provides an excellent opportunity for Scouts to mature in a safe environment.

ALL VISITORS must sign in and out of the Camp Office. We require each visitor to wear a security wristband.

SPECIAL NEEDS

If a Scout or adult needs some extra help to enjoy their camp experience, please let us know. Unit leaders should contact the Camp Administration prior to arrival regarding campers with special needs that require assistance from the camp staff. Most arrangements should be made in writing so the preparation can be accurate and complete. GBSR is not able to accommodate all possible special needs, but the staff will work diligently to make accommodations wherever possible.

SPENDING MONEY

We HIGHLY recommend that one adult leader in each troop serve as a banker for the youth. This prevents the loss of large amounts of money and allows leaders to help the youth pace their spending. The amount of spending money to bring to camp is at the discretion of the unit leaders / parents. We recommend about \$25 per scout.

TRADING POST

The Gus Blass Scout Reservation has a fully stocked Trading Post carrying Merit Badge pamphlets, uniforms, t-shirts, belts, equipment, handicrafts, toiletries, gift items, knives, GBSR souvenir items, snacks, beverages, and lots of neat stuff. We have everything you and your Scouts need for a fun and successful time at camp. There will be trading post merchandise available.

WI-FI AND CELL SERVICE

There is intermittent wireless and voice phone coverage at GBSR. Data service depends on the provider. There is wi-fi connectivity within certain areas of the camp, including in the Scoutmasters' Lounge.

NOTE: We have noticed an increasing issue with youth and cell phones becoming a disruption in classes and an impediment to youth interaction during activity and social times. For this reason we are asking units to collect and secure cell phones in the campsite during the day. Wifi will all require a password that we ask be kept for adult usage only AND youth will not be allowed to use cell phones during class unless required by their counsellor.

PREPARATION FOR MERIT BADGES AND OTHER CLASSES

Scouts should come to camp with a familiarity of the subjects they will be learning about for the week. It is also important to be familiar with:

- Prerequisites
- Equipment needed to complete a merit badge

PREREQUISITES: Some merit badges have requirements that cannot be completed at camp. Each merit badge that is listed in the camp guide identifies the prerequisite associated with the specific badge. The camp staff recommends that each merit badge that is selected by the Scout be reviewed, and the prerequisite requirements be completed prior to arrival at camp. This will ensure that the Scout leaves camp with as many completed merit badges as possible.

• <u>Prerequisite Approval Form:</u> This form can be found under the Resources section of the winter camp page. If the scout has completed the recommended prerequisites, he should fill out the form, have the scoutmaster verify and sign it and bring it to camp. This form should be turned in to the merit badge counselor at the beginning of the class.

The first requirement of many merit badges is to know first aid procedures for common injuries or illnesses that may occur during the associated activity. Counselors will touch upon this requirement, but Scouts should be familiar with basic first aid procedures before attempting more difficult or advanced merit badges.

- In some cases, the prerequisite for the selected badge requires that the Scout must have successfully completed another merit badge prior to the commencement of the current badge selected. If this is the case, camp staff asks that the Scout bring the prerequisite form signed by the Scoutmaster stating that the merit badge has been completed.
- Scoutmaster verification is also required for merit badges such as camping, which has a camping night requirement. (Submit on the Prerequisite approval form.)
- Some merit badges have requirements dealing with "your state" or "your community." If
 a merit badge requirement is completed at winter camp, we will use Arkansas as the
 relevant state. Requirements not possible to be completed in this manner will require the
 Scout to complete these requirements in their hometown, with their family, troop, school
 or in their community.

TREK SYSTEM

This year at Winter Camp, we will be using a trek style system. Scouts will sign up for a trek to be in all week. In that trek, Scouts will earn 4 or 5 associated merit badges. Under this system, we are unable to accommodate requests to change one merit badge in a trek in favor of another.

Scouts may switch treks however switching merit badges within treks is not possible. If a participant already has a merit badge in their chosen trek, they will have the opportunity to further develop and hone those merit badge skills.

THEME DAYS

Campers are encouraged to join in on all our wacky and fantastic theme days! The week long theme at Winter Camp is "America, the Beautiful" daily activities and events will surround each daily theme. "Bonus points" for best costumes!

1. Monday is 'Merica Day

- 2. Tuesday is Sports Day
- 3. Wednesday 4th of July Celebration

Winter Camp Care Package

We are excited to roll out our official Winter Camp Care Package! The TK Winter Camp Care Package offers trading post products at a great deal and are available to scouts and staff attending Winter Camp. All for just \$35.00! Care Packages can be purchased through Black Pug Registration.

For Winter Camp, our Care Package will include:

- A Camp T-shirt
- A Limited-Edition Camp Mug
- An additional Camp Patch
- \$15 Trading Post Voucher

When you purchase your care package online, we'll have your bag ready for you to pick up in the Trading Post! Please note: care package tickets for trading post items (ex. snacks or drinks) do not hold monetary value and the packages are nonrefundable. Care package tickets will only be accepted at the Trading Post during winter camp.

MERIT BADGE MATRIX – WINTER CAMP 2021

Trek	Merit Badge	Pre-Req	Adtı	nl Cost
Preserving America	Exploration			
	Forestry			
	Nature			
	Soil and Water			
Feeding America	Animal Science			
	Farm Mechanics			
	Gardening			
	Plant Science			
Celebrate Americana	American Cultures			
	American Heritage	3c		
	American Labor			
	Citizenship in the Nation	3		
Moving America	Auto Maintenance			
	Railroading			
	Traffic Safety			
	Truck Transportation			
Powering America	Electricity	2, 9a		
	Electronics			
	Energy	4a		
	Radio			
	Signs Signals and Codes			
Protecting America	Crime Prevention	4a, 4b		
	Finger Printing			
	Fire Safety	6a		
	Safety	2a, 2b		
	Search and Rescue			
From Sea to Sea	Fishing			
	Fly Fishing			
	Motor Boating		\$	10.00
	Fish and Wildlife			
Journey to Space	Astonomy			
	Model Design and Building			
	Nuclear Science			
	Space Exploration		\$	7.00
Serving America	Communication			
	Disability Awarness	4a.a.		
	Law			
	Public Speaking			
American Handyman	Home Repairs			

	Plumbing		
	Welding		
	Woodwork	1c	\$ 10.00
Team USA	COPE		
BSA Scout Skills	Cooking		
	Pioneering		
	Orienteering		
	Wilderness Survival		

WINTER CAMP – EVENT SCHEDULE

	Saturday 19 Nov	Sunday 20 Nov	Monday 21 Nov	Tuesday 22 Nov	Wednesday 23 Nov
7:30		Flag	Flag	Flag	Flag
8:00		Breakfast	Breakfast	Breakfast	Breakfast
8:30					
9:00					
9:30					
10:00		AM Treks	AM Treks	AM Treks	AM Treks
10:30					
11:00					
11:30					
12:00		Lunch	Lunch	Lunch	4th of July BBQ
12:30	Check-In	Lunch	Lunch	Luttett	4th of July BBQ
1:00					Closing Program
1:30					
2:00					Scouts Depart
2:30		PM Treks	PM Treks	PM Treks	
3:00	PM Treks	r ivi rreks	r Wi TIEKS	r IVI ITEKS	
3:30					
4:00					
4:30					
5:00	Dinner	Dinner	Dinner	Dinner	
5:30	Diffici	Diffici	Diffici	Diffici	
6:00	Troop Org Time		Jersey Night /	J2S Rockets	
6:30			Games	J25 Nockets	
7:00	Movement to Bowen	JOTA/JOTI	22		
7:30				Dutch Oven Cook-	
8:00	Opening Campfire		OA Fellowship	Off	
8:30				•	
9:00	Cracker Barrel @ Bowen	Cracker Barrel	Cracker Barrel		
10:00	Hygeine	Hygeine	Hygeine	Hygeine	
11:00	Lights Out	Lights Out	Lights Out	Lights Out	
Daily Themes	Quiet Professionalism	Merica Day	Sports Day	Staff's Choice	4th of July Extravaganza

SUBJECT TO CHANGE BEFORE THE START OF CAMP

LEADER MEETINGS

Leader Meetings will be held on Wednesday and Friday at 9 AM in the Dining Room. At this meeting we will review upcoming activities, answer any questions and address any concerns. We ask that at least one adult from each unit attend.

LEADER TRAININGS & ACTIVITIES

A number of optional leader training sessions and leader-specific activities will be head throughout the week, coordinated by a variety of guests. Adults attending camp are encouraged to sign up for both classes and fun leader activities. These classes and activities will be under the "CLASSES" tab of the registration so that leaders can reserve their spots in advance.

SCOUTMASTER MERIT BADGE

We will be offering a Scoutmaster Merit Badge at Winter Camp! You can spend your week at Gus Blass Scout Reservation and experience the fun and exciting adventures the scouts are having, while working on your own! Those who accomplish the requirements will receive their Scoutmaster Merit Badge at closing ceremony of winter camp!

Gus Blass Scout Reservation Winter Camp Daily Campsite Inspection Form

Campsites will be inspected each day after breakfast.

TROOP:	DATE:

ltem	Possible Points	Points Awarded
TENTS:		
Tents neat and orderly.	10	
HEALTH AND SAFETY		
Water cooler available and filled	5	
First Aid Kit present and labeled	5	
FIRE PIT		
Fire Pit cleaned and raked	5	
Fire Guard chart properly filled out	5	
Fire tools present and readily available	5	
Firewood, if present, neatly stacked	5	
LATRINES		
Toilet and sinks cleaned, toilets closed	5	
No personal gear in latrines	5	
Latrine floors swept and hosed	5	
COMMON AREA		
Duty Roster filled out and posted	5	
Pavilion cleaned, organized and swept	5	
American and Troop Flag present	5	
	5	
CAMP		
Campsite is neat and clear of litter and debris	10	
Camp gadget (new every day)	5	
Daily assigned adopt a spot completed	10	
BONUS POINTS		
Gateway with troop number (and something	10	
new added each day ie patrol flags / emblems,		
spirit items, themed items.)		
TOTAL	110	

MEDICATION DOSING FORM

Quapaw Area Council – Boy Scouts of America

Scout Name:	Age:		Unit #:	
Comm Cossian / Data:		Committee		
Camp Session/Date:		Campsite:		

Instructions:

- Each participant taking medications should have a separate form.
- Ideally, the form should be completed by the adult in the unit who will administer the medication at camp (unit healthofficer).
- List each prescription medication the scout is receiving separately.
- The unit health officer giving the medication should put their name or initials by the time at which the medication was given. If no medication is given, leave the space blank.

Medication Name and frequency of		Medication given	Medication given	Medication	Medications given
administration listed on the bottle		around Breakfast	around Lunch (12-	given around	at bedtime
		(7-8 AM)	1 PM)	Supper (6 PM)	
	Sunday			,,	
	Monday				
	Tuesday				
	Wednesday				
	Thursday				
	Friday				
	Saturday				
	Sunday				
	Monday				
	Tuesday				
	Wednesday				
	Thursday				
	Friday				
	Saturday				
	Sunday				
	Monday				
	Tuesday				
	Wednesday				
	Thursday				
	Friday				
	Saturday				